
 NOTICE OF MEETING  
 SHEBOYGAN COUNTY FINANCE COMMITTEE 

July 24, 2024 - 3:30 PM 
  

Administration Building - Conference Room 302 
508 New York Avenue Sheboygan, WI  53081 

 
 Topic: Finance Committee Meeting 

Time: July 24, 2024 03:30 PM Central Time (US and Canada) 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84788308160?pwd=XfsyWy2fd55ntcmyZv9dVhzc9WOSDR.1 
 

Meeting ID: 847 8830 8160 
Passcode: 630846 

 
Members of the Committee may be appearing remotely. Persons wanting to observe the 

meeting may come to the Administration Building or listen remotely 

AGENDA 

Sheboygan County Page 1  Posted: 7/19/2024 at 4:00pm  

Call to Order 
Certification of Compliance with Open Meeting Law   
Approval of Minutes    

Finance Committee – July 10, 2024 –  3:30 PM  
 
Correspondence – None 
 
 
Finance Director Report 

Finance Director Report is a summary of key activities. No action will be taken by the 
Finance Committee resulting from the report unless it is a specific to an item on the agenda 

 
 
Finance  
     Consideration of Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP)  
     Consideration of Ordinance No. __ - Repealing and Recreating Chapter 5 

Initial Review of 5-year Capital Plan  
 
 
Approval of Vouchers 
    Approval of Attendance at Other Meetings or Functions 
 
 
Adjournment  
    Next Scheduled Meeting – August 14, 2024, 3:30 PM, Administration Building Room 302 
 
 
Prepared by:  
Wendy Siegert   Vernon Koch 
Recording Secretary  Committee Chairperson 
 
 



Agenda Finance Committee July 24, 2024 

Sheboygan County Page 2 Posted: 7/19/2024 at 4:00pm 

Wearing a mask will be strongly encouraged. Room 302 has a capacity limit of 21 individuals using the current CDC guidance on 
COVID-19 social distancing. If the room exceeds capacity, the Committee Chair may ask attendees to leave and participate 
remotely or adjourn the meeting and reschedule for another time. 
 
NOTE: A majority of the members of the County Board of Supervisors or of any of its committees may be present at this 
meeting, and it is likely that a majority of the Executive Committee will be present, to listen, observe and participate. If a majority of 
any such body is present, their presence constitutes a "meeting" under the Open Meeting Law as interpreted in State ex rel. Badtke 
v. Greendale Village Board, 173 Wis. 2d 553 (1993), even though the visiting body will take no action at this meeting.  
 
Wis. Stat. § 19.84 requires that each meeting of a governmental body be preceded by a public notice setting forth the time, date, 
place, and subject matter of the meeting. This Notice and Agenda is made in fulfillment of this obligation. Electronic versions of this 
Notice and Agenda may hyperlink to documents being circulated to members in anticipation of the meeting and are accessible to the 
public for viewing.  Additions, subtractions, or modifications of the hyperlinked materials do not constitute an amendment to the 
meeting agenda unless expressly set forth in an Amended Notice and Agenda. Members of the public are encouraged to check from 
time to time before the meeting to see whether the hyperlinked content has been changed from what was originally posted. 
 
The Committee welcomes all visitors to listen and observe, but only Committee members and those invited to speak will be 
permitted to speak. 
 
If listed as an agenda item – The Administrator’s Report, Finance Director’s Report, and Information Technology’s Report is a 
summary of key activities. No action will be taken by the Finance Committee resulting from the reports unless it is a specific item on 
the agenda.  
 
Persons with disabilities needing assistance to attend or participate are asked to notify the County Clerk's Office, 920-459-3003 
prior to the meeting so that accommodations may be arranged. 



SHEBOYGAN COUNTY FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 

Administration Building, Room 302 
508 New York Avenue 
Sheboygan WI 53081 

 
  
July 10, 2024 Called to Order:  3:30 P.M. Adjourned: 4:09 P.M. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Vern Koch, Kathleen Donovan, William Goehring, Thomas Wegner, 

Curt Brauer 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   
 
ALSO PRESENT: In Person:  Edward Procek, Alayne Krause, Jeremy Fetterer, 

Stefanie Albrecht, Jerry Jorgensen, Bryan Olson, Chris Lewinski, 
Jon Dolson, Wendy Siegert 

 
Remote: Evelyn Wise, Brenda Hanson, Crystal Fieber, Jennifer 
Schmidt, Matthew Strittmater 
 

Chairperson Koch called the meeting to order at 3:30 P.M. 
 
The Chairperson certified compliance with the open meeting law. The notice was posted  
July 5, 2024 at 9:00 am. The Amended Agenda was posted July 9, 2024 at 12:00 pm. 
 
Supervisor Wegner moved to approve the minutes of June 12, 2024. Motion seconded by 
Supervisor Brauer. Motion carried.  
 
Correspondence – None. 
 
County Administrator, Alayne Krause, informed the committee on the progress of the 2025 budget 
development as well as the 5-year Capital Plan, updated the committee on recent American 
Rescue Plan Act taskforce reports, and also shared that she will be presenting information on the 
opioid settlement funding at the next County Board meeting. 
 
Deputy Finance Director, Jeremy Fetterer, informed the committee the 2025 Budget process is 
now underway with scheduling base budget meetings with departments. The year-end audit work 
for 2023 should be completed by the end of this week and meet the end of month target for final 
filings.  
 
County Clerk, Jon Dolson, presented Consideration of Resolution No. ___ Approving Transfer 
of Ownership and Election Voting Equipment. Chairperson Koch postponed the resolution to 
move it to a September Finance Committee meeting after the County Clerk is able to inform the 
town clerks of the proposed resolution. Decision carried with no objections. 
 
Information Technology Director, Christopher Lewinski, presented a Five-Year Capital Plan 
Project Funding Request. Supervisor Brauer moved to approve the request. Motion seconded 
by Supervisor Wegner. Motion Carried. 
 
Information Technology Director, Christopher Lewinski, presented a request for Out-of-State 
Travel for an I.T. employee. Supervisor Brauer moved to approve the request. Motion seconded 
by Supervisor Gehring. Motion Carried. 



 
Information Technology Director, Christopher Lewinski, presented a Change to Departmental 
Table of Organization. Supervisor Brauer moved to approve the request. Motion seconded by 
Supervisor Wegner. Motion Carried. 
 
Transportation Director, Bryan Olson, presented a request for the Highway Division to purchase 
a piece of equipment from auction. Supervisor Brauer moved to approve the request. Motion 
seconded by Supervisor Wegner. Motion Carried. 
 
Deputy Finance Director, Jeremy Fetterer, discussed additional Finance Committee meetings 
for budget review. No action was taken.  
 
Auditor/Analyst, Stefanie Albrecht, presented the Financial Statements for May. 
 
Deputy Finance Director, Jeremy Fetterer, presented the Investment Statements for May. 
 
Vouchers were reviewed. Supervisor Wegner moved to approve the expenditures. Motion 
seconded by Supervisor Brauer.  Motion carried. 
 
There were no requests for approval of attendance at other meetings or functions.  
 
Supervisor Wegner moved to adjourn. Motion seconded by Supervisor Gehring.  Motion carried. 
 
 
Wendy Siegert        William Goehring  
Recording Secretary       Secretary 



SHEBOYGAN COUNTY
Alayne Krause
County Administrator

To: Chairman Keith Abler and Members of the Executive Committee

Chairman Vern Koch and Members of the Finance Committee

Chairman Ed Procek and Members of the Human Resources Committee

From: Alayne Krause, County Administrator

Members of the ERP Steering Committee

Date: July 2 , 2024

Re: Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) Project Implementation Update

____________________________________________________________________________

As you know, several months ago, we deliberately decided to pause the transition from JD Edwards

EnterpriseOne to Tyler MUNIS. This has allowed the ERP Steering Committee to take a more holistic look

at the mission of the project, identify gaps, and determine a path forward. A SWOT (Strengths,

Weaknesses, Opportunities, and Threats) Analysis workshop was held, and the group collectively

identified the resources available within the Sheboygan County organization, and where outside

assistance is needed. Since then, the group has met several times, interfaced with Tyler MUNIS project

managers, and researched the necessity of hiring a third-party vendor to assist with implementation. As

a result of this ongoing collaboration – and the fact that the original contract was signed over four years

ago – some re-direction is warranted in order to move the project forward as efficiently and smoothly as

possible. To highlight these scope changes, they are as follows:

1. Move from an on-premises solution to a Software-as-a-Service, or cloud-based, platform. This

will reduce the burden on internal resources for ongoing support, and it is now industry practice.

2. Engage a third-party vendor with professional project management experience and capacity to

successfully guide us through the implementation.

3. Difference in licensing costs before go-live relating to SaaS transition.

4. Coordinate with the Tyler Technologies project manager to amend the scope of the original

project to account for a more efficient and effective project rollout since the inception of the

contract.

A Request for Proposals (RFP) has been issued for ERP implementation assistance, and we anticipate the

ERP Steering Committee having completed consultant selection by early August. A regular dialogue is

being maintained with the Tyler MUNIS representatives regarding this shift, and they have provided the

appropriate contract amendments for initial review. The funding for these changes is being requested in

the 5-year capital plan, which is where the project was originally approved and financed. A cost estimate

of the various elements related to this request can be found at the end of this memo.

Telephone (920) 459-3103
Administration Building

508 New York Avenue - Room 311
Sheboygan, WI 53081-4126

www.sheboygancounty.com



We are looking forward to a formal project restart in Fall, and we are confident these new measures will

better position us for success.

Project Scope Change Element Cost

3rd party vendor assistance $ 650,000

Cloud transition $ 10,455

ERP vendor project re-start $ 63,000

Cloud upfront licensing $ 97,000

Contingency $ 41,023

Total $ 861,478



CHAPTER 5
BUDGET ORDINANCE

5.01 TITLE
5.02 DEFINITIONS
5.03 FISCAL YEAR
5.04 ACCOUNTING AND BUDGETING PROCEDURE
5.05 BUDGET GOALS
5.06 BUDGET FORMULATION
5.07 BUDGET CONTROL POLICIES
5.08 FUND BALANCE REPORTING

5.01 TITLE.  This Ordinance may be cited as the Budget Ordinance.

5.02 DEFINITIONS.  In this Chapter, unless the context clearly requires otherwise:

(a) "Appropriation" means an expenditure amount set aside in the County's annual 
adopted budget for a specified purpose.

(b) "Appropriation units" are groupings of like appropriations categorized as means 
wages and benefitspersonnel related expenses, operating expenses, interdepartmental charges, 
and capital outlay.

(c) "Board" means the Sheboygan County Board of Supervisors.

(d) "Capitalization limit" means the cost at which capital purchases will be 
depreciated, rather than expensed, in the current year.

(de) "Committee" means the Finance Committee of the Board of Supervisors.

(ef) “ContingencyContingent Fund” means a portion of the Uunassigned Ffund 
Bbalance of the General Fund.  The Unassigned Fund Balance of the General Fund serves as a 
reserve to address unforeseen needs that were not anticipated during the budget development 
process.Contingent.

(eg) "Director" means the Sheboygan County Finance Director.

(fh) "Department" includes all County Departments, Boards, Commissions, 
institutions, offices, and other agencies of Sheboygan County government for which funds may be 
legally appropriated.

(gi) “Incidental Expense” is an expense line within the appropriation unit of operating 
expenses and is approved through the annual budget process. Budgeted incidental funds are 
intended to accommodate specific needs that are not foreseen during the budget process and 
which require prompt resolution.

(h(gj) "Liaison Committee" means the Committees of the Board of Supervisors which 
serve as the oversight Committee for a Department.

(ihk) "Plan" means the five-year capital projects plan.

(ji) "Capitalization limit" means the cost at which capital purchases will be 
depreciated, rather than expensed, in the current year.

(l) “Unassigned Fund Balance” means the Unassigned Fund Balance of the 
General Fund or Unrestricted Net Position of an Enterprise Fund which serves as a reserve to 
address unforeseen needs that were not anticipated during the budget development process; the 
Unassigned Fund Balance is the “contingent fund” as such fund is contemplated in Wis. Stat. § 
65.90(5)(b)..

5.03 FISCAL YEAR.  The fiscal year for Sheboygan County shall be the calendar year.



5.04 ACCOUNTING AND BUDGETING PROCEDURE.  Every accounting and budgeting 
procedure applied under this Section shall comply with generally accepted accounting principles for 
government as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board or other authoritative 
sources. The Director shall inform the Committee of the source used by the County and of any changes 
thereof.

5.05 BUDGET GOALS.  Between June 1 and July 1 of each year, the Finance Committee and 
the Executive Committee, using input from the County Administrator and the Finance Directorthe County 
Administrator, with input from the Finance Committee, Executive Committee, and Finance Director, shall 
establish budget goals and budget instructions for each Department Head to utilize in preparing their budget 
for the upcoming year.

5.06 BUDGET FORMULATION.  Two separate budget processes take place each year.  One 
process generates the capital projects budget, also known as the five- (5-) year plan, and the other 
generates the departmental operating budgets.  Both the capital projects budget and the departmental 
operating budgets are combined into one final budget document for Sheboygan County.  Each process is 
separately described below in Subsection (a) for the operating budget and Subsection (b) for the capital 
projects budget.

(a) Operating Budget.

(1) Initial Department Budget.  Between June 1 and July August 15 of each 
year, each Department shall prepare a proposed operating budget utilizing goals and 
instructions prepared by the CommitteeCounty Administrator.

(2) Initial Department Budget Format.  The budget shall be in a form 
developed by the County Administrator Finance Department as approved by the 
Committee which provides at least the following:

A. Projection of annual revenues and expenditures for the current 
fiscal year;

B. The Department's estimated revenues and expenditures for the 
ensuing fiscal year;

C. Any other information the Committee County Administrator 
requests.

(3) Administrative Review.  Between July 1 and August 15, the Department 
Head shall meet with the County Administrative Coordinator Administrator and Finance 
Director on a staggered schedule to review and refine the Department budget in 
anticipation of presenting the proposed budget to the Liaison Committee.

(4) Liaison Committee Review.  Between August 1 and September 15, each 
Department Head shall meet with the Department's Liaison Committee.  The Liaison 
Committee shall review the proposed budget and approve and modify the proposed budget 
as it deems appropriate.

(5) Finance Committee Review.  Prior to the October session of the County 
Board, the Department Head and the Liaison Committee shall meet with the Committee to 
review the Department's requested budget as approved and modified by the Liaison 
Committee.

(6) Committee Recommendation. The Finance Committee shall make such 
changes in each Department's proposed budget as in the Committee's discretion may be 
deemed desirable or proper and shall on or after October 1 submit to the Board the full 
budget in Resolution form.  The budget shall include:

A. a general summary of the detail contents of the budget;

B. a summary for each Department showing the actual revenue and 
expense of the preceding fiscal year, the budgeted revenue and expense for the 



current year, the actual revenue and expense for not less than the first six (6) 
months of the current year, the estimated revenue and expense for the fiscal year 
currently ending, and the Department's budget recommendation for revenue, 
expense, use of fund balance, and tax levy for the fiscal year next succeeding;

C. a comparative statement of any surplus and/or deficit from the 
preceding fiscal year not otherwise appropriated along with any other funds being 
applied or reserved;

D. the anticipated revenues, fund balance use, and tax levy for the 
fiscal year next succeeding shall be equal in amount to the recommended 
expenditure appropriations;

E. the Ccapitalization Llimit for capital expenditure items will be 
determined by the Finance Committee;

F. the budget shall be accompanied by a message which shall 
outline the important features of the budget plan and indicate any major changes 
in policy or in recommended appropriations or revenues as compared with the 
fiscal year then ending and shall set forth the reasons for such changes;

G. the Capital Projects portion of the budget as outlined in Section 
5.06(b) and approved at the September Board meeting is included in the proposed 
budget presented by the Committee;

H. the budget shall not include any funds for personnel positions 
unless such position exists in the Table of Organization at the time of the 
presentation of the proposed budget.

(7) Initial Budget Presentation.

A. The proposed budget shall be presented to the Board at its 
October session.

B. At such time, the Finance Committee or County Administrator 
shall present supplementary budget information that it determineds to be helpful in 
the understanding of the document.  Reading of the document or any parts thereof 
shall not be required.

(8) Budget Review and Public Hearing.

A. The Board shall hold a public hearing on the budget not later than 
the first second Wednesday in November of each year at which time citizens may 
appear and express their opinions. The public hearing may be held in conjunction 
with the October Board meeting.

B. The Clerk shall publish as a Class I notice, under Wis. Stat. Chch. 
985, at least fifteen (15) days prior to the time of the public hearing, a summary of 
the Committee's budget as required by Wis. Stat. § 65.90(3) and the place where 
the budget in detail is available for public inspection, and the date, hour, and place 
of the Board's public hearing on the executive budget in the official County 
newspaper.

C. The Board shall review the budget at its scheduled budget review 
session.  The review shall be by category except that any Board member may 
require line-by-line reading and review within any and all categories.  Motions to 
amend the budget shall be considered and voted on as presented.  Upon 
completion of its review, the budget shall be re-referred to the Finance Committee.  
The Finance Committee shall report its recommendations as to the "reviewed" 
budget at the next succeeding Board meeting.



D. The public hearing and line-by-line review may be performed at 
the same meeting.

(9) Adoption.

A. The Board shall consider the proposed budget Resolution with 
any final recommendations by the Finance Committee at its November meeting 
and shall make such changes it deems proper and advisable.  To the extent the 
Resolution is approved, the same shall constitute the County budget as defined in 
Wis. Stat. § 65.90.  Fiscal information which is not designated as an appropriation 
in the Resolution shall not be considered an appropriation.  Such fiscal data is for 
informational purposes only and is not an appropriation.

B. At the same meeting as the budget Resolution is adopted, the 
Board shall pass as a separate Resolution—the tax levy necessary to implement 
the budget.

(b) Five-Year Capital Plan (Capital Projects).

(1) The Committee County Administrator, as part of the annual budget 
development process, shall propose to the Committee in Resolution form a Plan for 
submission to the County Board at its August monthly meeting.  The Plan shall be 
generated from the requests of each Liaison Committee Department Head and shall be 
comprised of all capital projects of One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) or more 
in total cost which a Liaison Committee requests and which the Finance Committee 
endorses.  Capital projects are defined as active or proposed non-operating expenditures, 
completed in one or more specified Plan years with an expected life of more than one year.

(2) Between AprilMay 1 and June 1 of each year, each Department will 
prepare a request for projects to be included in the five- (5-) year capital improvements 
Plan.  The Plan shall be approved by the respective Liaison Committee before 
consideration by the Committee.

(3) After Liaison Committee approval, the Plan shall be sent to the Finance 
Department for compilation in a summary worksheet to be reviewed by the Finance 
Committee.  The Committee will meet prior to the August Board meeting to review and 
prioritize the requested projects, to amend, add, or delete projects from the Plan, and to 
determine appropriate sources of funding.  Liaison Committee members are encouraged 
to be present to provide input to the Committee.

(4) The Committee shall send a Resolution to the County Board at its August 
meeting recommending a specific five- (5-) year Plan.  The Board shall refer the Plan to 
the Executive Committee without regard to the timing of the public hearing under Section 
5.06(a)(8), above.

(5) The Executive Committee shall report back to the full Board at the 
September meeting.  When the Executive Committee report is submitted to the Board at 
its September monthly meeting, the Board may adopt the Plan as proposed by the 
Committee or it may adopt it as amended by the Executive Committee or as amended on 
the floor.

(6) That portion of the Plan as adopted by the Board at its September meeting 
which identifies capital projects approved for the upcoming budget year shall constitute the 
capital projects portion of the full budget for the coming year.

5.07 BUDGET CONTROL POLICIES.  The County budget is a financial plan for Sheboygan 
County developed in accordance with the Sheboygan County Code of General Ordinances, the Resolutions 
duly adopted by the County Board, Uniform Accounting Manual for Wisconsin Counties, and the 
pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  Budget control policies are as follows:

(a) (a)Budgetary Control.: The County exercises budgetary control by Appropriation 
Unit within a Department. Accordingly, Departments are expected to operate within the authorized 



budget amounts for each respective Appropriation Unit. If a Department receives less third-party 
(non-levy) revenue than budgeted, corresponding reductions in budgeted expenditures shall be 
made unless the Liaison Committee and Finance Committee approve to the contrary in accordance 
with Wis. Stat. §65.90(5).

(b) Change After Levy.      As used in this Section, "appropriation" means departmental 
appropriation unit as defined in Section 5.02(6).    Capital projects are separately budgeted, are not 
part of departmental budgets, and are not covered by this Section.  The amounts of the various 
Appropriation Unitsappropriations and the purposes for such Appropriation Unitsappropriations 
stated in the budget may not be changed unless authorized by two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Board, 
all in accordance with Wis. Stat. § 65.90(5)(ar), except that as delegated to the standing 
committees cited belowthe Finance Committee which may authorize expenditures, transfers, and 
variances without Board approval in the following circumstances:

(1) Incidental Expenses.  Two Departments include an incidental expense budget 
amount within the Operating Expenses appropriations unit; Building Services 
and Non-Departmental. While funds are budgeted, approval for use of the 
incidental expense line requires support of the Liaison Committee and 
approval of the Finance Committee.

(121) Capital Outlay Reprioritizations.  Upon request of a Department Head and 
approval by the Liaison Committee, the Finance Committee may authorize capital outlay 
account expenditures for items in substitution for those budgeted, provided the expenditure 
does not exceed the amount budgeted for the deleted items.

(232) Underfunded Appropriation Units.  Upon request of a Department Head 
and approval by theirthe Liaison Committee, the Finance Committee may authorize 
transfer of funds between Aappropriation Uunits of a Department as long as one-time 
expenditures are not being exchanged for recurring expenditures. Reallocation of one-time 
expenditures in exchange for recurring expenditures require the approval of the Board. 
Requests to reallocate to a recurring expenditure shall detail ability to continue funding in 
the future.,  so long as such transfers are not in excess of ten percent (10%) of the funds 
originally provided for such Department in the budget.  The Finance Committee may also 
authorize expenditures in excess of the original Department budget provided that:

A. additional, unbudgeted revenues will offset the extra cost, or

B. contingency funds are approved for the additional expenditure, or

C. Aas allowed by subsections (33) Use of Contingent Fund or (44) Use 
of Unassigned Fund Balance, below.fund balance is to be used to 
absorb the extra expense, so long as such additional expense is not 
in excess of ten percent (10%) of the funds originally provided for 
such departmental appropriation unit in the budget.

D.
E. Any transfer from the Contingency Fund shall also be subject to the 

following Subsections:
F.B.

(343) Use of Contingency Contingent Fund Transfers.  The County Board may 
annually provide an allocation for the Contingentcy Fund which is intended to be used only 
for emergency needs that were not anticipated during the budget development process.  A 
total annual limit of One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000) is available for use as 
Contingent Funds  Upon request of a Liaison Committee, Tthe Finance Committee may 
approve the , if approved by two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Committee, transfer of funds from 
the ContingencyContingent Fund for underfunded or unbudgeted items of up to the lesser 
of Twenty-five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00) or ten percent (10%) of the annual 
ContingencyContingent Fund limit or ten (10) percent of the funds originally provided for in 
the affected aAppropriation uUnit.  appropriation.  All other transfers from the 
ContingencyContingent Fund may be made only by two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of the 
Board.  If a Department receives less third-party (non-levy) revenue than budgeted, 
corresponding reductions in budgeted expenditures shall be made unless the Liaison 



Committee and Finance Committee approve to the contrary.  Any time a change to a 
budgetary appropriation is made pursuant to this Section, the Clerk shall publish a notice 
thereof within ten (10) days after such change is made.  Transfers within a departmental 
appropriation unit do not constitute a change to a budgetary appropriation.

(454) Use ofUnassigned Fund Balance..  Upon request of a Liaison Committee, 
the Finance Committee may authorize use of Unassigned Fund Balance as long as the 
requested amount does not exceed ten (10) percent of the funds originally budgeted for in 
the affected aAppropriation uUnit. All requests beyond this threshold may only be 
authorized by two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Board.  The Finance Committee may use General 
Fund Undesignated Fund Balance if Contingency Funds are not available.  

(56) Notice. Any time a change to a budgetary appropriationan Appropriation 
Unit is made pursuant to fifteen (15) pursuant to Wis. Stat. §65.90(5)(ar) by the full County 
Board, the Director shall publish a notice thereof within fifteen (15) days after such change 
is made. Transfers within a departmental Aappropriation uUnit do not constitute a change 
to a budgetary appropriationan Appropriation Unit.

Use of fund balance is subject to the provisions of Section 5.07(a)(3).

(bc) General Obligation Debt.  No budget may be adopted which provides for new 
capital project expenditures financed through bonds issued pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 67.05 in excess 
of Five Seven Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($57,500,000.00) for current year 
expenditures or and ElevenFourteen Five Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars 
($11145,0500,000.00) over a two-year period. for prior year expenditures Approval of Bbond 
financing above this amount requires not already financed unless the Board to adopt, as part of the 
budget process, adopts by two-thirds (2/3) vote a companion Resolution as part of the budget 
process to the budget authorizing the additional bonding by two-thirds (2/3) vote.

(d) Incidental Expenses.  TheTwo Departments include an incidental expense budget 
amount within the Operating Expenses appropriations unit; Building Services Department budgets 
for incidental expenses, and expenditures from such budgeted incidental expenses requires 
approval of the Property Committee.  Any expenditures from budgeted and NNon-Departmental 
incidental expenses shall require approval of . While funds are budgeted, approval for use of the 
incidental expense line requires support ofthe requesting Department’s  the Liaison Committee and 
approval of the Finance Committee.

5.08 FUND BALANCE REPORTING.  The Sheboygan County Finance Department shall 
implement the use of fund balance reporting and fund type definitions consistent with Government 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 54.

(a) Delegation of Authority.  Subject to Subsection (b), below, the County 
Administrator and the Finance Director, acting jointly, are delegated the authority to assign amounts 
to be used for specific purposes to the various “assigned fund balances” to be reported in the 
County’s financial statements.

(b) Finance Committee Oversight.  The Finance Committee, acting for the County 
Board, is empowered to revise any fund balance amounts assigned by the County Administrator 
and the Finance Director.

(c) Commitment of Uses.  The resources/revenues of the current Health and Human 
Services FundsSpecial Revenue, Public SafetyRevolving Loan Funds, Debt Service Funds, 
Transportation, Internal Service, Enterprise and Capital Project Funds are committed for use for 
the respective purposes of these fundsthat are constrained for specific purposes as determined by 
the County Board..

(d) Restriction of Uses. The resources/revenues that are constrained for specific 
purposes by external parties (such as grantor or bondholders), through constitutional provisions, 
or by enabling legislation.

(e) Nonspendable fund balance. Amounts that are not in spendable form (such as 
inventory, prepaid items, or long-term receivables) or are legally or contractually required to remain 
intact.



History:  Ord. 15 (2002/03); Ord. 8 (2004/05); Ord. 8 (2011/12); Ord. 8 (2015/16)

July 2, 2024, draft



CHAPTER 5
BUDGET ORDINANCE

5.01 TITLE
5.02 DEFINITIONS
5.03 FISCAL YEAR
5.04 ACCOUNTING AND BUDGETING PROCEDURE
5.05 BUDGET GOALS
5.06 BUDGET FORMULATION
5.07 BUDGET CONTROL POLICIES
5.08 FUND BALANCE REPORTING

5.01 TITLE.  This Ordinance may be cited as the Budget Ordinance.

5.02 DEFINITIONS.  In this Chapter, unless the context clearly requires otherwise:

(a) "Appropriation" means an expenditure amount set aside in the County's annual 
adopted budget for a specified purpose.

(b) "Appropriation units" are groupings of like appropriations categorized as 
personnel related expenses, operating expenses, interdepartmental charges, and capital outlay.

(c) "Board" means the Sheboygan County Board of Supervisors.

(d) "Capitalization limit" means the cost at which capital purchases will be 
depreciated, rather than expensed, in the current year.

(e) "Committee" means the Finance Committee of the Board of Supervisors.

(f) “Contingent Fund” means a portion of the Unassigned Fund Balance of the 
General Fund.

(g) "Director" means the Sheboygan County Finance Director.

(h) "Department" includes all County Departments, Boards, Commissions, 
institutions, offices, and other agencies of Sheboygan County government for which funds may be 
legally appropriated.

(i) “Incidental Expense” is an expense line within the appropriation unit of operating 
expenses and is approved through the annual budget process. Budgeted incidental funds are 
intended to accommodate specific needs that are not foreseen during the budget process and 
which require prompt resolution.

(j) "Liaison Committee" means the Committees of the Board of Supervisors which 
serve as the oversight Committee for a Department.

(k) "Plan" means the five-year capital projects plan.

(l) “Unassigned Fund Balance” means the Unassigned Fund Balance of the 
General Fund or Unrestricted Net Position of an Enterprise Fund which serves as a reserve to 
address unforeseen needs that were not anticipated during the budget development process; the 
Unassigned Fund Balance is the “contingent fund” as such fund is contemplated in Wis. Stat. § 
65.90(5)(b).

5.03 FISCAL YEAR.  The fiscal year for Sheboygan County shall be the calendar year.

5.04 ACCOUNTING AND BUDGETING PROCEDURE.  Every accounting and budgeting 
procedure applied under this Section shall comply with generally accepted accounting principles for 
government as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board or other authoritative 
sources. The Director shall inform the Committee of the source used by the County and of any changes 
thereof.



5.05 BUDGET GOALS.  Between June 1 and July 1 of each year, the County Administrator, 
with input from the Finance Committee, Executive Committee, and Finance Director, shall establish budget 
goals and budget instructions for each Department Head to utilize in preparing their budget for the upcoming 
year.

5.06 BUDGET FORMULATION.  Two separate budget processes take place each year.  One 
process generates the capital projects budget, also known as the five- (5-) year plan, and the other 
generates the departmental operating budgets.  Both the capital projects budget and the departmental 
operating budgets are combined into one final budget document for Sheboygan County.  Each process is 
separately described below in Subsection (a) for the operating budget and Subsection (b) for the capital 
projects budget.

(a) Operating Budget.

(1) Initial Department Budget.  Between June 1 and August 1 of each year, 
each Department shall prepare a proposed operating budget utilizing goals and instructions 
prepared by the County Administrator.

(2) Initial Department Budget Format.  The budget shall be in a form 
developed by the County Administrator which provides at least the following:

A. Projection of annual revenues and expenditures for the current 
fiscal year;

B. The Department's estimated revenues and expenditures for the 
ensuing fiscal year;

C. Any other information the County Administrator requests.

(3) Administrative Review.  Between July 1 and August 15, the Department 
Head shall meet with the County Administrator and Finance Director on a staggered 
schedule to review and refine the Department budget in anticipation of presenting the 
proposed budget to the Liaison Committee.

(4) Liaison Committee Review.  Between August 1 and September 15, each 
Department Head shall meet with the Department's Liaison Committee.  The Liaison 
Committee shall review the proposed budget and approve and modify the proposed budget 
as it deems appropriate.

(5) Finance Committee Review.  Prior to the October session of the County 
Board, the Department Head shall meet with the Committee to review the Department's 
requested budget as approved and modified by the Liaison Committee.

(6) Committee Recommendation. The Finance Committee shall make such 
changes in each Department's proposed budget as in the Committee's discretion may be 
deemed desirable or proper and shall on or after October 1 submit to the Board the full 
budget in Resolution form.  The budget shall include:

A. a general summary of the detail contents of the budget;

B. a summary for each Department showing the actual revenue and 
expense of the preceding fiscal year, the budgeted revenue and expense for the 
current year, the actual revenue and expense for not less than the first six (6) 
months of the current year, the estimated revenue and expense for the fiscal year 
currently ending, and the Department's budget recommendation for revenue, 
expense, use of fund balance, and tax levy for the fiscal year next succeeding;

C. a comparative statement of any surplus and/or deficit from the 
preceding fiscal year not otherwise appropriated along with any other funds being 
applied or reserved;



D. the anticipated revenues, fund balance use, and tax levy for the 
fiscal year next succeeding shall be equal in amount to the recommended 
expenditure appropriations;

E. the Capitalization Limit for capital expenditure items will be 
determined by the Finance Committee;

F. the budget shall be accompanied by a message which shall 
outline the important features of the budget plan and indicate any major changes 
in policy or in recommended appropriations or revenues as compared with the 
fiscal year then ending and shall set forth the reasons for such changes;

G. the Capital Projects portion of the budget as outlined in Section 
5.06(b) and approved at the September Board meeting is included in the proposed 
budget presented by the Committee;

H. the budget shall not include any funds for personnel positions 
unless such position exists in the Table of Organization at the time of the 
presentation of the proposed budget.

(7) Initial Budget Presentation.

A. The proposed budget shall be presented to the Board at its 
October session.

B. At such time, the Finance Committee or County Administrator 
shall present supplementary budget information determined to be helpful in the 
understanding of the document.  Reading of the document or any parts thereof 
shall not be required.

(8) Budget Review and Public Hearing.

A. The Board shall hold a public hearing on the budget not later than 
the first  Wednesday in November of each year at which time citizens may appear 
and express their opinions. The public hearing may be held in conjunction with the 
October Board meeting.

B. The Clerk shall publish as a Class I notice, under Wis. Stat. Ch. 
985, at least fifteen (15) days prior to the time of the public hearing, a summary of 
the budget as required by Wis. Stat. § 65.90(3) and the place where the budget in 
detail is available for public inspection, and the date, hour, and place of the Board's 
public hearing on the budget in the official County newspaper.

C. The Board shall review the budget at its scheduled budget review 
session.  The review shall be by category except that any Board member may 
require line-by-line reading and review within any and all categories.  Motions to 
amend the budget shall be considered and voted on as presented.  Upon 
completion of its review, the budget shall be re-referred to the Finance Committee.  
The Finance Committee shall report its recommendations as to the "reviewed" 
budget at the next succeeding Board meeting.

D. The public hearing and line-by-line review may be performed at 
the same meeting.

(9) Adoption.

A. The Board shall consider the proposed budget Resolution with 
any final recommendations by the Finance Committee at its November meeting 
and shall make such changes it deems proper and advisable.  To the extent the 
Resolution is approved, the same shall constitute the County budget as defined in 
Wis. Stat. § 65.90.  Fiscal information which is not designated as an appropriation 



in the Resolution shall not be considered an appropriation.  Such fiscal data is for 
informational purposes only and is not an appropriation.

B. At the same meeting as the budget Resolution is adopted, the 
Board shall pass as a separate Resolution—the tax levy necessary to implement 
the budget.

(b) Five-Year Capital Plan (Capital Projects).

(1) The County Administrator, as part of the annual budget development 
process, shall propose to the Committee in Resolution form a Plan for submission to the 
County Board at its August monthly meeting.  The Plan shall be generated from the 
requests of each Department Head and shall be comprised of all capital projects of One 
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000) or more in total cost which a Liaison Committee 
requests and which the Finance Committee endorses.  Capital projects are defined as 
active or proposed non-operating expenditures, completed in one or more specified Plan 
years with an expected life of more than one year.

(2) Between April 1 and June 1 of each year, each Department will prepare a 
request for projects to be included in the Plan.  The Plan shall be approved by the 
respective Liaison Committee before consideration by the Committee.

(3) After Liaison Committee approval, the Plan shall be sent to the Finance 
Department for compilation in a summary worksheet to be reviewed by the Finance 
Committee.  The Committee will meet prior to the August Board meeting to review and 
prioritize the requested projects, to amend, add, or delete projects from the Plan, and to 
determine appropriate sources of funding.  Liaison Committee members are encouraged 
to be present to provide input to the Committee.

(4) The Committee shall send a Resolution to the County Board at its August 
meeting recommending a specific five- (5-) year Plan.  The Board shall refer the Plan to 
the Executive Committee without regard to the timing of the public hearing under Section 
5.06(a)(8), above.

(5) The Executive Committee shall report back to the full Board at the 
September meeting.  When the Executive Committee report is submitted to the Board at 
its September monthly meeting, the Board may adopt the Plan as proposed by the 
Committee or it may adopt it as amended by the Executive Committee or as amended on 
the floor.

(6) That portion of the Plan as adopted by the Board at its September meeting 
which identifies capital projects approved for the upcoming budget year shall constitute the 
capital projects portion of the full budget for the coming year.

5.07 BUDGET CONTROL POLICIES.  The County budget is a financial plan for Sheboygan 
County developed in accordance with the Sheboygan County Code of General Ordinances, the Resolutions 
duly adopted by the County Board, Uniform Accounting Manual for Wisconsin Counties, and the 
pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  Budget control policies are as follows:

(a) Budgetary Control. The County exercises budgetary control by Appropriation Unit 
within a Department. Accordingly, Departments are expected to operate within the authorized 
budget amounts for each respective Appropriation Unit. If a Department receives less revenue than 
budgeted, corresponding reductions in budgeted expenditures shall be made unless the Liaison 
Committee and Finance Committee approve to the contrary in accordance with Wis. Stat. 
§65.90(5).

(b) Change After Levy.  The amounts of the various Appropriation Units and the 
purposes for such Appropriation Units stated in the budget may not be changed unless authorized 
by two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Board, all in accordance with Wis. Stat. § 65.90(5)(ar), except as 
delegated to the standing committees cited below which may authorize expenditures, transfers, 
and variances without Board approval in the following circumstances:



(1) Capital Outlay Reprioritizations.  Upon request of a Department Head and 
approval by the Liaison Committee, the Finance Committee may authorize capital outlay 
expenditures for items in substitution for those budgeted, provided the expenditure does 
not exceed the amount budgeted for the deleted items.

(2) Underfunded Appropriation Units.  Upon request of a Department Head 
and approval by the Liaison Committee, the Finance Committee may authorize transfer of 
funds between Appropriation Units of a Department as long as one-time expenditures are 
not being exchanged for recurring expenditures. Reallocation of one-time expenditures in 
exchange for recurring expenditures require the approval of the Board. Requests to 
reallocate to a recurring expenditure shall detail ability to continue funding in the future.  
The Finance Committee may also authorize expenditures in excess of the original 
Department budget provided that:

A. additional, unbudgeted revenues will offset the extra cost, or

B. as allowed by subsections (3) Use of Contingent Fund or (4) Use of 
Unassigned Fund Balance, below.

(3) Use of Contingent Fund.  The Contingent Fund is intended to be used only 
for emergency needs that were not anticipated during the budget development process.  A 
total annual limit of One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000) is available for use as 
Contingent Funds  Upon request of a Liaison Committee, the Finance Committee may 
approve the transfer of funds from the Contingent Fund for underfunded or unbudgeted 
items of up to the lesser of the annual Contingent Fund limit or ten (10) percent of the funds 
originally provided for in the affected Appropriation Unit.  All other transfers from the 
Contingent Fund may be made only by two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Board.  

(4) Unassigned Fund Balance. Upon request of a Liaison Committee, the 
Finance Committee may authorize use of Unassigned Fund Balance as long as the 
requested amount does not exceed ten (10) percent of the funds originally budgeted for in 
the affected Appropriation Unit. All requests beyond this threshold may only be authorized 
by two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Board.    

(5) Notice. Any time a change to an Appropriation Unit is made pursuant to 
pursuant to Wis. Stat. §65.90(5)(ar) by the full County Board, the Director shall publish a 
notice thereof within fifteen (15) days after such change is made. Transfers within a 
departmental Appropriation Unit do not constitute a change to an Appropriation Unit.

(c) General Obligation Debt.  No budget may be adopted which provides for new 
capital project expenditures financed through bonds issued pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 67.05 in excess 
of Seven Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($7,500,000) for current year expenditures or 
Fifteen Million Dollars ($15,000,000) over a two-year period. Approval of bond financing above this 
amount requires the Board to adopt a Resolution as part of the budget process authorizing the 
additional bonding by two-thirds (2/3) vote.

(d) Incidental Expenses.  The Building Services Department budgets for incidental 
expenses, and expenditures from such budgeted incidental expenses requires approval of the 
Property Committee.  Any expenditures from budgeted Non-Departmental incidental expenses 
shall require approval of the requesting Department’s Liaison Committee and approval of the 
Finance Committee.

5.08 FUND BALANCE REPORTING.  The Sheboygan County Finance Department shall 
implement the use of fund balance reporting and fund type definitions consistent with Government 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 54.

(a) Delegation of Authority.  Subject to Subsection (b), below, the County 
Administrator and the Finance Director, acting jointly, are delegated the authority to assign amounts 
to be used for specific purposes to the various “assigned fund balances” to be reported in the 
County’s financial statements.



(b) Finance Committee Oversight.  The Finance Committee, acting for the County 
Board, is empowered to revise any fund balance amounts assigned by the County Administrator 
and the Finance Director.

(c) Commitment of Uses.  The resources/revenues that are constrained for specific 
purposes as determined by the County Board.

(d) Restriction of Uses. The resources/revenues that are constrained for specific 
purposes by external parties (such as grantor or bondholders), through constitutional provisions, 
or by enabling legislation.

(e) Nonspendable fund balance. Amounts that are not in spendable form (such as 
inventory, prepaid items, or long-term receivables) or are legally or contractually required to 
remain intact.

History:  Ord. 15 (2002/03); Ord. 8 (2004/05); Ord. 8 (2011/12); Ord. 8 (2015/16)

July 2, 2024, draft



1 SHEBOYGAN COUNTY      ORDINANCE NO. ______ (2023/24)
2
3 Re: Repealing and Recreating Chapter 5 - Budget Ordinance
4
5
6 WHEREAS, County Staff are engaging in a systematic review of the County Code for 
7 updates to policies and procedures; and
8
9 WHEREAS, upon Staff review of Chapter 5 of the Sheboygan County Code of 
10 Ordinances, several provisions were found in need of updating.
11
12 NOW, THEREFORE, the County Board of Supervisors of the County of Sheboygan 
13 does ordain as follows:
14
15 Section 1. Repealing and Recreating Code.  Chapter 5 of the Sheboygan 
16 County Code of Ordinances is hereby repealed and recreated as attached.
17
18 Section 2. Effective Date.  The herein Ordinance shall take effect upon 
19 enactment. 
20
21 Respectfully submitted this 20th day of August, 2024.
22
23
24 FINANCE COMMITTEE
25
26
27
28 Vern Koch, Chairperson Kathleen Donovan, Vice-Chairperson
29
30
31 William Goehring, Secretary Curt Brauer
32
33
34 Thomas Wegner
35
36 Opposed to Introduction:
37
38
39
40
41 Countersigned by:
42
43
44
45 Keith Abler, Chairperson
46
47
48
49 8447\158412\2024-07-03 July 22, 2024, draft



 

 

 

SHEBOYGAN COUNTY 
 
Steve Hatton 
Finance Director 

Jeremy J. Fetterer 
Deputy Finance Director 

  

 

 
Telephone (920) 459-3007   
Facsimile  (920) 459-0334 

Administration Building 
508 New York Avenue - Room 208 

Sheboygan, WI  53081-4126 

Stephen.Hatton@sheboygancounty.com 
Jeremy.Fetterer@sheboygancounty.com 

www.sheboygancounty.com 
 

TO:  Members of the Sheboygan County Finance Committee  
 
FROM: Alayne Krause, County Administrator  

Steve Hatton, Finance Director   
 
DATE:  July 24, 2024 
 
RE:  Review of the 2025-2029 Five Year Capital Plan  
 
Attached is the Five-Year Capital Plan for years 2025-2029.  The attachments for the 2025-2029 
Five Year Capital Plan are assembled in the following order: 
 

1. Summary of projects and projected County bonding costs as recommended by the 
Finance Director and County Administrator 

2. Detail project requests for the new projects  
3. Updated detail project requests for funding requests included in the 2024-2028 Plan.  

 
New Projects 
 
This five-year plan includes new requests from the Planning Department for Sheboygan Marsh 
Boardwalk. Building Services’ Department for Law Enforcement Center Evidence Room 
Remodel and Law Enforcement Center Squad Garage and Sally Port Floor Replacement. Rocky 
Knoll projects added include Repaving Parking lots. Information Technology projects added 
include Microsoft Licensing Refresh and Replace VOIP Phone System.  
 
Changes to Previously Included Projects 
 
Crystal Lake to Elkhart Lake Connector Bike Path   
This project has been pushed out one year (from 27/28 beyond 2029).  Volunteer groups 
acquiring the real estate has been slower than anticipated.  
 
Courthouse Tuckpointing & Window Replacement 
This project has increased from $5,295,400 to $5,911,591 – an increase of $616,191 due to 
higher costs when the final bids were received. 

Jail/Detention Center Equipment Replacement and Remodel 
The remaining project cost decreased due to the shuffle of Office LED lights for the Detention 
Center to the Office LED lights project. 
 
 



Office LED Lights  
Project cost increased due to the shuffle of Office LED lights for the Detention Center being 
included in the Jail/Detention Center Equipment Replacement and Remodel project in the prior 
year. 
 
Elevator Upgrades 
Project was pushed back one year to accommodate the completion of the Courthouse 
Tuckpointing & Window Replacement before upgrading the Courthouse public elevator. 

HHS Remodel Updates 
Project cost increased $170,500 for additional updates that were found to be needed.  
 
Radio Equipment Upgrades 
Reimbursement for sales of old equipment has been removed assuming Sheboygan County will 
use the existing equipment longer or for parts. 
 
Expansion of the Sheboygan County Detention Center 
This project start was moved to 2027.  Project costs increased from $33,623,000 to $35,178,150 
due to inflation. 
 
Replace Network Infrastructure 
This project has decreased from $73,413 to $67,765 fully offset by reimbursements.  
 
Data Center Hardware 
This project has increased from $706,684 to $752,205, an increase of $45,521.  
 
Outlying Highway Sheds – Building Improvement & Replacement 
This project has increased from $9,338,717 to $11,100,000, a $1,761,283 increase.  
 
 
Thank you. 





Planning 
Building Services

LEC Squad Garage and Sally Port Floor Replacement
Rocky Knoll RK Parking Lots
Rocky Knoll Microsoft Licensing Refresh

Replace VOIP Phone System

New Projects to the 2025-2029 Five Year Capital Plan

………………..………

………………..………
………………..………

Sheboygan Marsh Boardwalk
LEC Evidence Room Remodel

………………..………



















































The following projects for the 2025-2029 Five Year Plan are 
updated project requests that are either: 

Continuation of a funded project 

or 

Previously included in last year’s plan (2024-2028) 

 















































Building Services

$800,000 20
$4,860,591 50

$251,000









Building Services UW Sheboygan

$92,000 10
$82,000

$31,500 25

$8,500 $1,500
$182,500 $33,000







$42,500
$48,000
$48,000
$7,323



Building Services

$395,000 $0 20
$775,500 $76,000 25

$7,500 $106,000 20
$433,500

$60,000 $31,500







$883,600



Building Services

$412,000 25

$41,000
$453,000 $0























$88,000
$87,300
$3,200

$68,000
$68,200
$3,200

























$0



Sheriff

$30,517,200 50

$208,950 15

$2,877,000 $126,000
$1,575,000

$35,178,150 $0







$53,000
$855,000



Rocky Knoll

$855,000

$53,000

$908,000 $0









Rocky Knoll

$295,000

$18,000

$313,000 $0









Rocky Knoll

$788,000

$788,000 $0









Rocky Knoll

$848,000

$848,000 $0









Rocky Knoll

$374,000

$374,000 $0












































































